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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
16 School Street

	Historic Name:
Mary Ann Coffin House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1880

	Source:  
deeds, historic maps

	Style/Form:   
Classical Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
wood clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


garage/ workshop

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


rear sunroom addition, late 20th C

window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:      0.33 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the east side of School Street on a lot with mature trees. The area is a mix of residential and institutional uses.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION
The Mary Ann Coffin House is a two-story wood frame dwelling with a hipped roof located on the southeast side of School Street northeast of Clark Street.  Built ca. 1880, the house has a two-bay front façade with an entrance and porch on the southerly side offset by a one-story bay window with beveled sides; two windows on the second story are aligned with features below.  The southerly side wall has two mid-story windows in the front, oriented to the landings of an interior staircase, with two tiers of windows in the rear.  The northerly side wall contains two tiers of windows in the front and a shallow two-story pavilion one bay wide in the rear.  Remnants of a one-story rear ell are visible on the northeast rear corner, but most of it has been replaced with a large sun porch with a shed roof added much later.  
A large workshop building behind the house was constructed with concrete blocks and has a front gable roof and steel casement windows in the side and rear walls.  This building probably was erected in the 1930s as a commercial electrician’s shop.  The front facade has wood clapboard siding and contains two vehicle bays with overhead doors, as well as a common door.  A Palladian window was added in the gable more recently.  

The house is sited in the northwest corner of the lot, and the workshop in the center with a driveway and parking area located southwest of the house between the street and the outbuilding.  There are a small front yard and a large rear yard extending back very close to Middle Street.  

The Mary Ann Coffin House, built ca. 1880, represents a rather modern house for the local architectural context of the period.  With a square plan and hipped roof, it is an unusual and early example of the four-square house type, the design of which probably came from a catalog and a familiarity of a more cosmopolitan place, such as Haverhill.  The property is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    

In March 1849 Georgetown shoe manufacturer Benjamin Little sold currier and bootmaker Samuel Coffin 26 rods of land with a  building on it in this neighborhood, and roughly three years later the heirs of the late David Tenney sold to Coffin an undeveloped quarter-acre adjacent to the land he already owned. Coffin paid Little $600 for the land and its structures, and by 1852 Coffin’s land stretched between Middle and School Streets.

Samuel Coffin appears to have been living in the house now numbered 17 Middle Street by 1850, and the 1856 map of Georgetown attaches the name “S. Coffin” to the property. Born in 1818 in Newburyport, Coffin was living in Georgetown at the time of his 1844 marriage to Mary Ann Scribner, daughter of Samuel and Hannah Rogers Scribner of Newbury. Coffin is shown in the 1850 census with $1200 in real property; the 1870 census shows Coffin on Middle Street with $1500 in real property. In 1876, however, Coffin died unexpectedly, and his widow for a time boarded in another household while this house on the northwest or School Street side of their lot was built. She was probably living in this house by 1880, when the census shows her in a household enumerated just before Herbert Dale at 15 School Street; she was then boarding the family of express wagon driver Henry W. Longfellow. Mary Ann Coffin is shown in this School Street house on the 1884 map of Georgetown and in the 1885 directory. She died later that year of consumption at the age of sixty-four.

In June 1882 Mary Ann Coffin sold 16 School Street to Alfred A. Ordway, her nephew, for $100. Ordway, born about 1836 in Bradford, was the son of Alfred Ordway and Rebecca L. Scribner, and he was a shoe manufacturer in Haverhill. He owned and presumably rented the School Street property until he died in 1922, after which the administrator of his estate sold the property to Alice M. Emerson.
 Emerson was the widow of Arthur M. Emerson, a shoe cutter and native of Hampstead, New Hampshire, who had died in Derry, New Hampshire, in 1916. The couple married in Haverhill in 1890, within a year or two after Emerson’s first wife May Henward Emerson had died, possibly while giving birth to their twin daughters Alice M. and Ella M. By 1918 Alice M. Emerson, her stepdaughter Alice, and her son Clifford D. Emerson, an electrician, were living in Haverhill. By 1920 she was a seamstress in a dye house, and the younger Alice Emersons was a leather company stenographer.
The 1930 census showed Alice M. Emerson at 16 School Street with $2600 in real property; also in the household were Clifford, still an electrician, and Alice, then a private secretary. By 1940 Clifford had married, and he and his wife Agnes are shown at 16 School Street with his mother, then seventy-three years old. In that year she deeded the property to herself and her son Clifford, and seven years later, probably after his mother’s death, Clifford Emerson transferred title to 16 School Street to himself and his wife. They owned and occupied the house until 1962, when they sold it to current owners James N. and Jean A. Tolman.
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16 School Street: views from NW (top) and NE (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Mary Ann Coffin House, built ca. 1880, represents a rather modern house for the local architectural context of the period.  With a square plan and hipped roof, it is an unusual and early example of the four-square house type, the design of which probably came from a catalog and a familiarity of a more cosmopolitan place, such as Haverhill.  The property is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Benjamin Little to Samuel Coffin, 17 March 1849, SED 419:142; Orlando B. Tenney, Charles J. and Eveline M. Bailey, David B. Tenney, Georgetown, and Putnam F. Tenney, Orono ME, to Samuel Coffin, 29 December 1852, SED 472:16.


� Mary A. Coffin to Alfred A. Ordway, 13 June 1882, SED 1177:195; George Mitchell, administrator estate Alfred A. Ordway, Newbury, to Alice M. Emerson, 22 September 1922, SED 2529:545.


� Alice M. Emerson to Clifford D. and Alice M. Emerson, 29 August 1940, SED 3229:427; Clifford D. Emerson to Clifford D. and Agnes P. Emerson, 30 December 1947, SED 3537:318; Clifford D. and Agnes P. Emerson to James N. and Jean A. Tolman, 18 September 1962, SED 4989:176. See also “Plan of Land in Georgetown Surveyed for Clifford D. Emerson,” SEP 4094:1.
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